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IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA 
 

WYNN RESORTS LIMITED,
 
   Petitioners, 
 
vs. 
 
THE EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT 
COURT OF THE STATE OF 
NEVADA, IN AND FOR THE 
COUNTY OF CLARK; AND THE 
HONORABLE ELIZABETH 
GONZALEZ, DISTRICT JUDGE, 
DEPT. XI, 
 
   Respondent, 
 
and 
 
KAZUO OKADA, UNIVERSAL 
ENTERTAINMENT CORP. 
AND ARUZE USA, INC., 
 
  Real Parties in Interest. 

Case No. _____ 
 
 
 
 
 
APPENDIX IN SUPPORT OF  
WYNN RESORTS, LIMITED'S 
PETITION FOR WRIT OF 
PROHIBITION OR 
ALTERNATIVELY, MANDAMUS  
 
 
 
VOLUME II OF IV 
 
 

 

DATED this 24th day of May, 2016. 
 

     PISANELLI BICE PLLC 
 
 
     By:   /s/ Todd L. Bice     
      James J. Pisanelli, Esq., Bar No. 4027 

 Todd L. Bice, Esq., Bar No. 4534 
 Debra L. Spinelli, Esq., Bar No. 9695 
 400 South 7th Street, Suite 300  
 Las Vegas, Nevada   89101 
 
Attorneys for Petitioner Wynn Resorts, Limited 

  

Electronically Filed
May 25 2016 08:55 a.m.
Tracie K. Lindeman
Clerk of Supreme Court

Docket 70452   Document 2016-16374
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CHRONOLOGICAL INDEX 

  

DOCUMENT DATE VOL. PAGE 

Second Amended and Restated Articles of 
Incorporation of Wynn Resorts, Limited 
(Exhibit 2 to Affidavit of Robert J. Miller) 

09/16/2002 I 
APP_0005-
APP_00016 

The Arkin Group LLC, Memorandum (Exhibit 
3 to Wynn Resorts, Limited’s Opposition to the 
Okada Parties’ Motion to Compel 
Supplemental Responses to their Second and 
Third Sets of Requests for Production) 
FILED UNDER SEAL 

02/04/2011 III 
APP_0385-
APP_0402 

The Arkin Group LLC, Memorandum 
(Exhibit 38 in the Appendix of Exhibits 
Referenced in the Aruze Parties’ Reply in 
Support of Motion to Compel Supplemental 
Responses to their Second and Third Set of 
Requests for Production of Documents to 
Wynn Resorts, Limited) 
FILED UNDER SEAL 

02/11/2011 III 
APP_0403-
APP_0409 

Minutes of a Meeting of the Board of Directors 
of Wynn Resorts, Limited (Exhibit C to 
Appendix to Wynn Resorts, Limited's 
Opposition to Defendants' Motion to Compel 
Wynn Resorts, Limited to Produce Freeh 
Documents) 
FILED UNDER SEAL 

02/24/2011 III 
APP_0468-
APP_0473 

Archfield Reports (Exhibit H to Appendix to 
Wynn Resorts, Limited's Opposition to 
Defendants' Motion to Compel Wynn Resorts, 
Limited to Produce Freeh Documents) 
FILED UNDER SEAL 

08/24/2011 III 
APP_0474-
APP_0494 
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CHRONOLOGICAL INDEX 

  

DOCUMENT DATE VOL. PAGE 

Engagement Letter from Joel M. Friedman to 
Kim Sinatra and Robert J. Miller, as amended 
by a letter from Joel M. Friedman to Kim 
Sinatra (Exhibit 13 to Defendants' Motion to 
Compel Wynn Resorts, Limited to Produce 
Freeh Documents) 
FILED UNDER SEAL 

10/27/2011 III 
APP_0533-
APP_0542 

Minutes of a Meeting of the Board of Directors 
of Wynn Resorts, Limited (Exhibit 14 to 
Defendants' Motion to Compel Wynn Resorts, 
Limited to Produce Freeh Documents) 
FILED UNDER SEAL 

11/01/2011 III 
APP_0495-
APP_0532 

Freeh Report (Exhibit 1 to Affidavit of 
Robert J. Miller) 

02/18/2012 I 
APP_0017-
APP_0063 

Minutes of a Special Meeting of the Board of 
Directors of Wynn Resorts, Limited (Exhibit 2 
to Appendix to Wynn Resorts, Limited's 
Opposition to Defendants' Motion to Compel 
Wynn Resorts, Limited to Produce Freeh 
Documents) 
FILED UNDER SEAL 

02/18/2012 III 
APP_0436-
APP_0448 

Minutes of a Special Meeting of the Board of 
Directors of Wynn Resorts, Limited (Exhibit 16 
to Defendants' Motion to Compel Wynn 
Resorts, Limited to Produce Freeh Documents) 
FILED UNDER SEAL 

02/18/2012 IV 
APP_0543-
APP_0721 

Transcript of February 2012 Wynn Resorts, 
Limited Conference Call (Exhibit 17 to 
Defendants' Motion to Compel Wynn Resorts, 
Limited to Produce Freeh Documents) 
FILED UNDER SEAL 

02/21/2012 III 
APP_0449-
APP_0467 

Affidavit of Robert J. Miller 09/20/2012 I 
APP_0064-
APP_0073 



 

   4

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

P
IS

A
N

E
L

L
I 
B

IC
E

  
40

0 
SO

U
T

H
 7

T
H

 S
T

R
E

E
T
, S

U
IT

E
 3

00
 

L
A

S
 V

E
G

A
S,

 N
E

V
A

D
A

 8
91

01
 

 

CHRONOLOGICAL INDEX 

  

DOCUMENT DATE VOL. PAGE 

Annual Report of Wynn Resorts, Limited on 
Form 10-K (Exhibit 24 to Defendants' Motion 
to Compel Wynn Resorts, Limited to Produce 
Freeh Documents) 

03/02/2015 I 
APP_0074-
APP_0207 

Wynn Resorts, Ltd., Corporate Security, The 
Republic of the Philippines (Exhibit 2 to Wynn 
Resorts, Limited’s Opposition to the Okada 
Parties’ Motion to Compel Supplemental 
Responses to their Second and Third Sets of 
Requests for Production) 
FILED UNDER SEAL 

05/19/2015 III 
APP_0377-
APP_0384 

Defendants' Motion to Compel Wynn Resorts, 
Limited to Produce Freeh Documents 

09/23/2015 I 
APP_0208-
APP_0236 

Reply in Support of Defendants' Motion to 
Compel Wynn Resorts, Limited to Produce 
Freeh Documents 

10/14/2015 II 
APP_0359-
APP_0376 

Transcript: Hearing Wynn Parties' Motion to 
Compel Expedited Responses and Defendants' 
Motion to Compel Freeh Documents 

10/15/2015 II 
APP_0261-
APP_0296 

Order Granting In Part Defendants' Motion to 
Compel Freeh Documents 

11/18/2015 I 
APP_0237-
APP_0239 

    

Defendants' Motion to Compel Wynn Resorts, 
Limited to Produce Freeh Documents and 
Ex Parte Application for Order Shortening 
Time 

01/05/2016 II 
APP_0240-
APP_0260 

Deposition of Alvin V. Shoemaker (Excerpt) 
FILED UNDER SEAL 

01/28/2016 III 
APP_0432-
APP_0435 

Deposition of Robert J. Miller (Excerpt) 
FILED UNDER SEAL 

02/09/2016 III 
APP_0410-
APP_0420 

Deposition of D. Boone Wayson (Excerpt) 
FILED UNDER SEAL 

02/16/2016 III 
APP_0421-
APP_0426 
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CHRONOLOGICAL INDEX 

  

DOCUMENT DATE VOL. PAGE 

Deposition of Russell Goldsmith (Excerpt) 
FILED UNDER SEAL 

02/19/2016 III 
APP_0427-
APP_0431 

Transcript: Hearing on Elaine Wynn's Motion 
to De-Designate And Kimmarie Sinatra's 
Motion to Associate Counsel 

04/14/2016 II 
APP_0297-
APP_0358 

Order Regarding (1) Motions to Compel Freeh 
Documents and (2) In-Camera Review of Freeh 
Group Documents 

05/03/2016 I 
APP_0001-
APP_0004 
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ALPHABETICAL INDEX 

 

    

DOCUMENT DATE VOL. PAGE 

Affidavit of Robert J. Miller 09/20/2012 I 
APP_0064-
APP_0073 

Annual Report of Wynn Resorts, Limited on 
Form 10-K (Exhibit 24 to Defendants' Motion 
to Compel Wynn Resorts, Limited to Produce 
Freeh Documents) 

03/02/2015 I 
APP_0074-
APP_0207 

Archfield Reports (Exhibit H to Appendix to 
Wynn Resorts, Limited's Opposition to 
Defendants' Motion to Compel Wynn Resorts, 
Limited to Produce Freeh Documents) 
FILED UNDER SEAL 

08/24/2011 III 
APP_0474-
APP_0494 

Defendants' Motion to Compel Wynn Resorts, 
Limited to Produce Freeh Documents 

09/23/2015 I 
APP_0208-
APP_0236 

Defendants' Motion to Compel Wynn Resorts, 
Limited to Produce Freeh Documents and 
Ex Parte Application for Order Shortening 
Time 

01/05/2016 II 
APP_0240-
APP_0260 

Deposition of Alvin V. Shoemaker (Excerpt) 
FILED UNDER SEAL 

01/28/2016 III 
APP_0432-
APP_0435 

Deposition of D. Boone Wayson (Excerpt) 
FILED UNDER SEAL 

02/16/2016 III 
APP_0421-
APP_0426 

Deposition of Robert J. Miller (Excerpt) 
FILED UNDER SEAL 

02/09/2016 III 
APP_0410-
APP_0420 

Deposition of Russell Goldsmith (Excerpt) 
FILED UNDER SEAL 

02/19/2016 III 
APP_0427-
APP_0431 

Engagement Letter from Joel M. Friedman to 
Kim Sinatra and Robert J. Miller, as amended 
by a letter from Joel M. Friedman to Kim 
Sinatra (Exhibit 13 to Defendants' Motion to 
Compel Wynn Resorts, Limited to Produce 
Freeh Documents) 
FILED UNDER SEAL 

10/27/2011 III 
APP_0533-
APP_0542 
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ALPHABETICAL INDEX 

 

    

DOCUMENT DATE VOL. PAGE 

Freeh Report (Exhibit 1 to Affidavit of 
Robert J. Miller) 

02/18/2012 I 
APP_0017-
APP_0063 

Minutes of a Meeting of the Board of Directors 
of Wynn Resorts, Limited (Exhibit 14 to 
Defendants' Motion to Compel Wynn Resorts, 
Limited to Produce Freeh Documents) 
FILED UNDER SEAL 

11/1/2011 III 
APP_0495-
APP_0532 

Minutes of a Meeting of the Board of Directors 
of Wynn Resorts, Limited (Exhibit C to 
Appendix to Wynn Resorts, Limited's 
Opposition to Defendants' Motion to Compel 
Wynn Resorts, Limited to Produce Freeh 
Documents) 
FILED UNDER SEAL 

02/24/2011 III 
APP_0468-
APP_0473 

Minutes of a Special Meeting of the Board of 
Directors of Wynn Resorts, Limited (Exhibit 
16 to Defendants' Motion to Compel Wynn 
Resorts, Limited to Produce Freeh Documents)
FILED UNDER SEAL 

02/18/2012 IV 
APP_0543-
APP_0721 

Minutes of a Special Meeting of the Board of 
Directors of Wynn Resorts, Limited (Exhibit 2 
to Appendix to Wynn Resorts, Limited's 
Opposition to Defendants' Motion to Compel 
Wynn Resorts, Limited to Produce Freeh 
Documents) 
FILED UNDER SEAL 

02/18/2012 III 
APP_0436-
APP_0448 

Order Granting In Part Defendants' Motion to 
Compel Freeh Documents 

11/18/2015 I 
APP_0237-
APP_0239 

Order Regarding (1) Motions to Compel Freeh 
Documents and (2) In-Camera Review of 
Freeh Group Documents 

05/03/2016 I 
APP_0001-
APP_0004 
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ALPHABETICAL INDEX 

 

    

DOCUMENT DATE VOL. PAGE 

Reply in Support of Defendants' Motion to 
Compel Wynn Resorts, Limited to Produce 
Freeh Documents 

10/14/2015 II 
APP_0359-
APP_0376 

Second Amended and Restated Articles of 
Incorporation of Wynn Resorts, Limited 
(Exhibit 2 to Affidavit of Robert J. Miller) 

09/16/2002 I 
APP_0005-
APP_00016 

The Arkin Group LLC, Memorandum 
(Exhibit 3 to Wynn Resorts, Limited’s 
Opposition to the Okada Parties’ Motion to 
Compel Supplemental Responses to their 
Second and Third Sets of Requests for 
Production) 
FILED UNDER SEAL 

02/04/2011 III 
APP_0385-
APP_0402 

The Arkin Group LLC, Memorandum 
(Exhibit 38 in the Appendix of Exhibits 
Referenced in the Aruze Parties’ Reply in 
Support of Motion to Compel Supplemental 
Responses to their Second and Third Set of 
Requests for Production of Documents to 
Wynn Resorts, Limited) 
FILED UNDER SEAL 

02/11/2011 III 
APP_0403-
APP_0409 

Transcript of February 2012 Wynn Resorts, 
Limited Conference Call (Exhibit 17 to 
Defendants' Motion to Compel Wynn Resorts, 
Limited to Produce Freeh Documents) 
FILED UNDER SEAL 

02/21/2012 III 
APP_0449-
APP_0467 

Transcript: Hearing on Elaine Wynn's Motion 
to De-Designate And Kimmarie Sinatra's 
Motion to Associate Counsel 

04/14/2016 II 
APP_0297-
APP_0358 

Transcript: Hearing Wynn Parties' Motion to 
Compel Expedited Responses and Defendants' 
Motion to Compel Freeh Documents 

10/15/2015 II 
APP_0261-
APP_0296 
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DOCUMENT DATE VOL. PAGE 

Wynn Resorts, Ltd., Corporate Security, The 
Republic of the Philippines (Exhibit 2 to Wynn 
Resorts, Limited’s Opposition to the Okada 
Parties’ Motion to Compel Supplemental 
Responses to their Second and Third Sets of 
Requests for Production) 
FILED UNDER SEAL 

05/19/2015 III 
APP_0377-
APP_0384 

Affidavit of Robert J. Miller 09/20/2012 I 
APP_0064-
APP_0073 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that I am an employee of PISANELLI BICE PLLC, and that 

on this 24th day of May, 2016, I electronically filed and served by electronic mail 

and U.S. Mail true and correct copies of the above and foregoing APPENDIX IN 

SUPPORT OF WYNN RESORTS, LIMITED'S PETITION FOR WRIT OF 

PROHIBITION OR ALTERNATIVELY, MANDAMUS to the following: 

SERVED VIA U.S. MAIL 
 
J. Stephen Peek, Esq. 
Bryce K. Kunimoto, Esq. 
Robert J. Cassity, Esq. 
Brian G. Anderson, Esq. 
HOLLAND & HART LLP 
9555 Hillwood Drive, Second Floor 
Las Vegas, NV  89134 
Attorneys for Defendants/ 
Counterclaimants Kazuo Okada,  
Aruze USA, Inc. and Universal 
Entertainment Corp. 
 
David S. Krakoff, Esq. 
Benjamin B. Klubes, Esq. 
Joseph J. Reilly, Esq. 
BUCKLEY SANDLER LLP 
1250 – 24th Street NW, Suite 700 
Washington, DC  20037 
Attorneys for 
Defendants/Counterclaimants 
Kazuo Okada, Aruze USA, Inc. and 
Universal Entertainment Corp. 
 
Richard A. Wright, Esq. 
WRIGHT STANISH & WINCKLER 
300 South 4th Street, Suite 701 
Las Vegas, NV  89101 
Attorneys for 
Defendants/Counterclaimants 
Kazuo Okada, Aruze USA, Inc. and 
Universal Entertainment Corp. 
 
SERVED VIA HAND-DELIVERY 
The Honorable Elizabeth Gonzalez 
Eighth Judicial District court, Dept. XI 
Regional Justice Center 
200 Lewis Avenue 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89155

Donald J. Campbell, Esq. 
J. Colby Williams, Esq. 
CAMPBELL & WILLIAMS 
700 South 7th Street 
Las Vegas, NV  89101 
Attorneys for Stephen A. Wynn 
 
William R. Urga, Esq. 
Martin A. Little, Esq. 
JOLLEY URGA WOODBURY & LITTLE
3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, 16th Floor 
Las Vegas, NV  89169 
Attorneys for Elaine P. Wynn 
 
John B. Quinn, Esq. 
Michael T. Zeller, Esq. 
Jennifer D. English, Esq. 
Susan R. Estrich, Esq. 
QUINN EMANUEL URQUHART & 
SULLIVAN LLP 
865 Figueroa Street, Tenth Floor 
Los Angeles, CA  90017 
Attorneys for Elaine P. Wynn 
 
Melinda Haag, Esq. 
James N. Kramer, Esq. 
ORRICK, HERRINGTON & 
SUTCLIFFE 
The Orrick Building 
405 Howard Street 
San Francisco, CA  94105 
Attorneys for Kimmarie Sinatra

 
 
 
 /s/ Kimberly Peets    
An employee of Pisanelli Bice PLLC
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TRAN CLERK OF THE COURT 

DISTRICT COURT 
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

WYNN RESORTS LIMITED 

Plaintiff 

vs. 

KAZUO OKADA, et al. 

Defendants 

* * * * * 

CASE NO. A-656710 

DEPT. NO. XI 

Transcript of 
Proceedings 

BEFORE THE HONORABLE ELIZABETH GONZALEZ, DISTRICT COURT JUDGE 

HEARING ON ELAINE WYNN'S MOTION TO DE-DESIGNATE 
AND KIMMARIE SINATRA'S MOTION TO ASSOCIATE COUNSEL 

COURT RECORDER: 

JILL HAWKINS 
District Court 

THURSDAY, APRIL 14, 2016 

TRANSCRIPTION BY: 

FLORENCE HOYT 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89146 

Proceedings recorded by audio-visual recording, transcript 
produced by transcription service. 
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APPEARANCES: 

FOR THE PLAINTIFF: 

FOR THE DEFENDANTS: 

JAMES J. PISANELLI, ESQ. 
DEBRA SPINELLI, ESQ. 

J. STEPHEN PEEK, ESQ. 
DONALD JUDE CAMPBELL, ESQ. 
COLBY J. WILLIAMS, ESQ. 
WILLIAM R. URGA, ESQ. 
DAVID J. MALLEY, ESQ. 

2 

APP_0298



1 LAS VEGAS, NEVADA, THURSDAY, APRIL 14, 2016, 9:56 A.M. 

(Court was called to order) 2 

3 THE COURT: All right. Sorry you're late, but as a 

4 result of the in-camera review I was doing and the stipulation 

5 and order that you filed in January and then a subsequent stip 

6 and order that you submitted day before yesterday I have some 

7 questions to ask you before you start your motions. And I 

8 wanted to ask you this outside the presence of most of the 

9 other lawyers ln the jurisdiction. Ready? 

10 MR. PEEK: It sounds OmlnOUS, Your Honor. 

11 THE COURT: Well, you know, it's okay. I don't mind 

12 when you guys stipulate to do certain things, but I'm not 

13 always sure I understand what you think you're doing. Which 

14 is why I'm going back to the stipulation that was filed on 

15 January 26th of 2016. 

16 Mr. Urga, you're not golng to know the answer to 

17 this one. Mr. Malley lS, though. 

18 MR. URGA: Oh. Thank goodness, Your Honor. 

19 THE COURT: And Ms. Spinelli. 

20 And, Mr. Peek, you're golng to have to guess. 

21 So you filed a stipulation that says basically, 

22 we're not going to follow Nevada rules, we're going to follow 

23 Federal Rules of Civil Procedure related to expert production 

24 of information. What do you think you're producing? Because 

25 I've read Federal Rule 26 and looked at the exceptions to 

3 

APP_0299



1 Federal Rule 26 on experts, and I have no idea what you think 

2 you're producing, so I need you to specifically identify for 

3 me as we are sitting here today what you believe you are 

4 producing, as opposed to what you have written in this 

5 stipulation and the stipulation that was submitted with the 

6 extension of time for experts that were supposed to have been 

7 disclosed on April 1st. But I understand you've stipulated 

8 that deadline to September. 

9 MR. PISANELLI: I will obviously defer to other 

10 counsel who have additional points, but I know one of the maln 

11 topics of the negotiation was to submit written reports to one 

12 another, but not to go through the process that the State 

13 rules have for drafts and all of the discovery that comes 

14 along with drafts. I think that was the impetus to go to 

15 federal standard. 

16 THE COURT: So here's the issue. And this is 

17 because I have done 25 percent of the in-camera review of the 

18 Freeh documents. I have serious concerns about what you have 

19 stipulated to. And given Mr. Peek's motion that's scheduled 

20 for tomorrow, I want you guys to think about this before we 

21 hear that motion tomorrow. 

22 Even under Federal Rule 26 there lS substantial 

23 information that is factual based upon the expert's research 

24 and analysis that still is discoverable and needs to be 

25 produced. 
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1 

2 

3 

MR. PISANELLI: Agreed. 

MR. PEEK: We agree. 

THE COURT: Okay. So what do you think you're 

4 producing? 

5 MR. PEEK: I guess maybe it's just more the 

6 exceptions, as opposed to that which we are producing. And as 

7 I appreciate the federal rule, Your Honor, and the effort at 

8 the amendments --

9 Do you mind if I step up? 

10 MR. PISANELLI: Not at all. 

11 

12 

MR. PEEK: Join me, please. 

THE COURT: And I'm sorry I brought up here to have 

13 this discussion. 

14 

15 

MR. PEEK: That's all right. 

THE COURT: I don't mind you stipulating to use the 

16 federal rules, but I need to understand what you believe 

17 you've stipulated to, especially given the process I have 

18 spent significant time trying to go through. 

19 MR. PISANELLI: Your Honor, before Mr. Peek starts, 

20 perhaps this goes to the heart of your question what you're 

21 doing. 

22 

23 now. 

It sounds like the question arose because --

THE COURT: I'm not worried about what I'm doing 

I'm worried about what we're doing in the future and 

24 whether I'm going to have to redo what I'm doing now in the 

25 future. But I haven't asked you that question yet, because I 
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1 want the answer to this question first. That question would 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

be question number two. I'm on question one. 

MR. PISANELLI: I'm trying to answer question one. 

And I think it's that you're reviewing Freeh documents through 

a lens that he is an expert. And we do not consider him to be 

an expert. 

THE COURT: Then can you explain to me why he 

continued work after he did his report and presented the 

information to the board? 

MR. PISANELLI: He was our attorney. He was always 

11 our attorney. 

12 MR. PEEK: We have our own vlew of that, Your Honor. 

13 But I appreciate their position. But, like Mr. Pisanelli, I 

14 agree that he's not going to be treated as an expert. 

15 MR. PISANELLI: He may be -- you know, we have a new 

16 rule ln Nevada that could complicate the analysis of whether 

17 he's a non-reporting expert, depending upon how the questions 

18 are posed, et cetera. But he hasn't been designated as 

19 anyone's expert. 

20 THE COURT: Well, that's because you haven't 

21 designated experts yet, have you? 

22 

23 

24 

MR. PISANELLI: Fair point. 

MR. PEEK: And, Your Honor 

THE COURT: Which is why I was golng to go to 

25 question number two sometime after get an answer to question 
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1 one. 

2 MR. PEEK: We may well have to brief the lssue, as 

3 well, Your Honor, as to whether or not --

4 THE COURT: You will note that it says "pending 

5 further briefing" on some of those entries you got on Sunday. 

6 MR. PEEK: I saw that, Your Honor. And we are 

7 prepared to address that. 

8 THE COURT: But today's not the day to do that. 

9 MR. PEEK: No, it's not. But I just want to address 

10 at least Mr. Pisanelli's comment. We certainly would not 

11 consider him to be a, quote, unquote, nondisclosed expert sort 

12 of fitting under the treating physician type rule, which I 

13 think is what that was -- why that was adopted primarily. 

14 THE COURT: It also applies to certain kinds of 

15 engineers, architects, those kind of people. 

16 MR. PEEK: I certainly understand that, Your Honor. 

17 But that's for another day. And I did not-- I don't think 

18 that we intended when we drafted the stipulation with respect 

19 to experts to capture what now may be characterized by 

20 Pisanelli Bice and the Wynn parties as a sort of a -- trying 

21 to think of the right word here -- the experts sort of coming 

22 under the non-produced, non-report. 

23 MR. PISANELLI: Yeah, I don't think that's 

24 happening, either. So I don't want to create an lssue. I'm 

25 just saying that that complicates how we analyze things ln 
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1 Nevada with that new rule. But I think we entered the 

2 stipulation, Mr. Peek and I can agree on this, where no one 

3 was really thinking about Judge Freeh and his group, we were 

4 thinking about the traditional new experts. 

5 THE COURT: Well, it doesn't matter whether you were 

6 or not. What I'm trying to figure out is what you meant when 

7 you entered into the stipulation so I will understand and I 

8 can then issue an order that relates to it. Because right now 

9 I am unclear, and I think you guys are unclear, on what you 

10 think you are producing. And rather than having a dispute, I 

11 was golng to issue an order related to what constitutes the 

12 job file, like I do in most other cases where this issue comes 

13 up so that we don't face this issue every time we get to the 

14 point of 

15 MR. PEEK: Your Honor, agaln, I certainly don't want 

16 to speak for Jim, but I think that, as he said, both of us 

17 were trying to address the drafts primarily of --

18 THE COURT: Drafts of reports. 

19 MR. PEEK: Drafts of reports, not the entire job 

20 file. 

21 THE COURT: But that's --

22 MR. PEEK: So ( 1 ) lS "Drafts of any reports or 

23 disclosures prepared by an expert expected to testify, 

24 regardless of the form in which the draft is recorded." To me 

25 that --
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1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

THE COURT: Then you have the next one, which lS the 

more problematic issue. I'm not really concerned about 

MR. PEEK: "Communications between any party's 

attorney and an expert expected to testify, regardless of the 

form of the communication, except to the extent that his 

communications relate to any of the three areas specified ln 

20 (b) (4) (C)." And I don't happen to have that --

MS. SPINELLI: What was it? 

MR. PEEK: 26 (b) (4) (C), Ms. Spinelli. 

THE COURT: I've got it here, because I read it the 

other day again when you sent this. 

MR. PEEK: Maybe we need to refine our effort here 

13 to glve more clarity to the Court as to exactly what we 

14 intended. 

15 THE COURT: I have concerns that there is a 

16 disconnect -- or at least I anticipate a disconnect between 

17 the various parties related to the scope of what you have 

18 stipulated to. And since it was repeated in the most recent 

19 stipulation, I wanted to talk to you about it before I signed 

20 it or modified it. 

21 MR. PEEK: And I don't want -- I don't want to do 

22 this on the fly, Your Honor, and try to negotiate today. 

23 THE COURT: I know. That's why I'm trying to give 

24 you the issue, understanding part of this issue may impact 

25 what we're talking about tomorrow. But I didn't want you to 
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1 -- I wanted you to think about it, because I see it as a 

2 serlous concern. 

3 MR. PEEK: Our intent here was for those traditional 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

experts under Rule 16.1 that would be disclosed. I'm talking 

about the traditional experts with reports. It was intended 

to cover those traditional experts with reports. Because 

that's when you're talking about the job files and you're 

talking about the communications with counsel. What we were 

trying were the drafts and the communications that counsel 

would have --

THE COURT: That weren't factual in nature. 

MR. PEEK: that were not factual in nature 

MS. SPINELLI: Or the assumptions provided. 

MR. PEEK: which I think is the 26 (b) (4) (C) part. 

THE COURT: Right. The three exceptions. 

MS. SPINELLI: Right. 

THE COURT: Which are mostly factual ln nature. 

MR. PEEK: Have I captured it? 

MS. SPINELLI: Yes. 

MR. PEEK: So that was the intent. Now, if we need 

21 to go back and refine that language and be more specific so 

22 that we each understand what it is we're doing -- because we 

23 did not -- at least from my perspective we did not intend it 

24 to grab the Freeh analysis. 

25 THE COURT: I'm not saylng that Freeh lS or isn't, 
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1 because you haven't done your expert disclosures yet. 

2 

3 

MR. PEEK: Correct. 

THE COURT: But when I got to the point where I 

4 realized there were ongolng efforts that were included ln the 

5 ln-camera revlew --

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

MR. PEEK: Yes. 

THE COURT: -- it was a serlous concern for me, 

because I didn't anticipate that because nobody ever told me 

that before. 

MR. PEEK: And frankly, Your Honor --

THE COURT: I thought that he completed an 

12 assignment and finished based upon the retention letter, which 

13 I've read, and I certainly understand that you can always 

14 change the scope of a retention, but it looked and smelled 

15 like an expert after I hit those documents that went there. 

16 But I'll let you brief that on a different day. 

17 MR. PISANELLI: Okay. 

18 MR. PEEK: And certainly we will have a conversation 

19 with the Wynn parties regarding Mr. Freeh and the implication 

20 of our stipulation on Mr. Freeh and your privilege review. I 

21 don't know if we can do that between now and tomorrow morning 

22 when we come back here --

23 

24 

THE COURT: You may not be able to. 

MR. PEEK: -- on the motion practice tomorrow. But 

25 it may come up agaln tomorrow, so --
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1 THE COURT: Okay. So I will Slgn 

2 MR. URGA: Your Honor, just so the record's clear, 

3 I'd like to be sure that my co-counsel, the lead counsel, is 

4 going to be involved in this, too. 

5 THE COURT: Are those the people who are the same 

6 firm from the Cotter case that are my dysfunctional people? 

7 You notice I said it wasn't Mr. Ferrario. 

8 MR. URGA: Well, I just found out this mornlng the 

9 answer lS yes. 

10 

11 

THE COURT: Uh-huh. So --

MR. URGA: But I hope I'm not being blamed for what 

12 went on in Cotter. 

13 

14 

THE COURT: You're not blamed on Cotter. 

So I'm going to not accept your paragraph (f) ln 

15 your stipulation. You have already entered a stipulation 

16 among yourselves that deals with that issue, so I don't need 

17 to have that. But I am not comfortable with it. I know we've 

18 already got it ln a slightly different format. I'm golng to 

19 let you guys figure out what it is, and I'm going to Slgn this 

20 and say, "with the exception of section (f), okay. 

21 MR. PEEK: So as I understand, Your Honor, that --

22 and Ms. Spinelli can correct me, because she and Mr. Cassity 

23 would have done this that there's the January stipulation 

24 where we addressed --

25 MS. SPINELLI: This discovery lSsue, yes. 
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1 MR. PEEK: -- the discovery issue. And what I'm 

2 understanding from the Court is we may need to have further 

3 conversation to refine that or --

4 THE COURT: Well, (f) is different, slightly 

5 different, not a lot, but slightly different than what was ln 

6 the January stipulation. I signed the January stipulation 

7 because I understood it. But I don't know after what's 

8 happened more recently if you guys are on the same page. 

9 MR. PEEK: Well, January just dealt with expert 

10 disclosures, Bill. 

11 MR. URGA: Right. I'm just looking at the one that 

12 we submitted --

13 

14 

15 

16 

MS. SPINELLI: Yeah. She's scratching that out. 

THE COURT: I'm not -- I'm writing, "with the 

exception of page 7 (f)," okay. 

stipulation that deals with that 

You've already got a 

lSSUe. It is slightly 

17 different than what's ln (f). I will let you all work this 

18 out. And I apologize if anybody thought it was Mr. Peek's 

19 assistant's fault that I wasn't signing it. 

20 fault. 

It wasn't her 

21 

22 

MR. PEEK: I didn't think you did, Your Honor. 

THE COURT: It was I had a question about the 

23 content of it. And I still have questions about the content 

24 of it, but it's now signed, Mr. Peek, if you want to take it 

25 back. 
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1 MR. PEEK: I will, Your Honor. 

2 THE COURT: Will you take it back and glve it to 

3 your staff, or do you want Laura to call them? 

4 MR. PEEK: Well, unless Mr. Urga tells me to glve it 

5 Ms. Larsen, I guess I'd be happy to do it. 

THE COURT: I'm sure you'll be okay with that. 6 

7 So I have a concern, and I have suspended my work on 

8 the in-camera review after looking at 25 percent, because I 

9 feel that I have a valid statistical sample to issue an order 

10 that then requlres the Wynn parties to comply with certain 

11 areas of production. If you feel that I need to go through 

12 the additional 75 percent of the 30,000 in-camera documents, 

13 not pages, that have been submitted, then tell me. I would be 

14 happy to discuss it with you. But I feel like I've got a 

15 really good statistical sample at this point. 

16 MR. PEEK: Your Honor, I'm always hesitant to rely 

17 on a statistical example. However, there is a different need 

18 there's a compelling need--

19 

20 

THE COURT: Absolutely. 

MR. PEEK: -- for those documents and I assume a 

21 compelling part on the part of the Wynn parties as to whether 

22 or not they're going to seek writ relief on that. 

23 

24 

THE COURT: Well, they're going to take a writ. 

MR. PEEK: Well, they said they're golng to take a 

25 writ, so I would like to move that process along. Because we 
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1 are facing --

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

THE COURT: And they've already seen two snapshots. 

MR. PEEK: They have. 

THE COURT: Because I went -- it's not random. I 

did the first group, and then I gave you on Sunday afternoon 

when I couldn't do any more because my eyes were falling out 

of my head, I sent you the second group that I had completed 

up to. So you've got that group. I did more, but it was 

consistent with the information that I had, with the exception 

that I deleted one part that had to do with whether somebody 

was or was not a third party, because I found something that 

indicated to me they might have been retained later in the 

file. And so to that extent I think I've got enough 

information to be able to give you a written order that glves 

you parameters. Since I have absolutely no subject matter 

description on the privilege log, I can't give you a category 

as to subjects where you would be able to -- I'd be able to 

say, as to these here's the rules. I can't do that because of 

the way the privilege log is set up. I can glve you an order 

that tells you based on categories what to do and then 

reserves the further briefing issue on the post-report work 

that has been done. 

MR. PISANELLI: So long as there lS a briefing 

24 opportunity on the non-reviewed 75 percent and here's 

25 I'm thinking out loud, so this -- you know, if I'm not making 
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1 any sense, just interrupt me. But I'm starting to get a sense 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

-- a better feel for how it is you came about your initial 

rulings ont first 25 percent in this conversation about 

experts. But we'll have hopefully complete clarity on the 

rule that you're using to filter through them once you lssue 

an order, and that could --

THE COURT: I've already told you the rule I'm 

uslng, which is attorney-client -- or attorney work product 

did not apply to Mr. Freeh and his group for purposes of the 

work he did on the report. I told you that. You guys have 

told me now he's not an expert, so that stipulation you 

entered into does not apply to him. The supporting 

information in my oplnlon that he did to form his opinions on 

which he based his report that he gave to the compliance 

committee and then to the board on which those members then 

16 made their decision need to be produced. And I certainly 

17 understand that you've entered into a stipulation with respect 

18 to experts. You've told me he's not an expert, so I don't 

19 think I need to change my mind on that ruling I've previously 

20 made. 

21 MR. PISANELLI: So I understand your ruling on work 

22 product. But from some of your rulings -- I haven't reviewed 

23 them all, but I've reviewed some of them-- you appear to be 

24 overruling attorney-client privilege assertion when there are 

25 communications between in-house counsel at Wynn Resorts --
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1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

THE COURT: Absolutely. The in-house counsel are 

providing him factual information on a regular basis. They're 

also talking about use of the corporate jet, who they should 

talk to in Japan about helping them decide what rules they 

should follow. I mean, those kind of communications are not 

6 seeking legal advice. Those that are providing factual 

7 information need to be produced. And there are a lot of 

8 those. 

9 MR. PISANELLI: Well, even in your example where you 

10 say that they're discussing what rules to follow, that sounds 

11 analytical by definition. So, you know, we're only talking --

12 you know, I don't want to get bogged down on just an example 

13 you used. 

14 THE COURT: Okay. So here's the retention 

15 agreement, which lS -- for some reason you've decided lS 

16 privileged. And it has a very limited scope of what the 

17 retention was. 

18 

19 

20 

MS. SPINELLI: It's been produced, Your Honor. 

MR. PISANELLI: We've produced that, 

MS. SPINELLI: That might have been attached to 

21 something, but the retention letter has been an exhibit in 

22 every deposition. So I don't know if that's attached to 

23 something or if it was a draft or if it was a communication 

24 that's separate and apart that we think that the attachment 

25 was privileged because it was produced elsewhere. 
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1 THE COURT: So can you tell me who actually did the 

2 revlew of these documents? 

3 MS. SPINELLI: Yes. My -- it was conglomerate of 

4 

5 

people of my firm and reviewers, outside contacts. 

THE COURT: Okay. So those outside reviewers, can 

6 you tell me how on earth a page where somebody handwrites the 

word "memos" on it is privileged. 

MS. SPINELLI: I don't know, Your Honor. 

7 

8 

9 THE COURT: Yeah. Me, either. Okay. Remember how 

10 I scolded Mr. Peek ont Jacobs-Sands productions? 

11 MS. SPINELLI: I do. 

12 THE COURT: Okay. Not quite as bad. Close. 

13 MS. SPINELLI: I think there lS some ambiguity, Your 

14 Honor, with the work product and the attorney-client 

15 privilege, and they were trying to stick to that order. So 

16 our apologies if it was unclear. But we 

17 I'm letting you go with attorney-client privilege. 

18 Because I do think we are going to seek a stay on 

19 that, Your Honor. 

20 THE COURT: Really? No. I knew that. That was 

21 sarcasm. 

22 MS. SPINELLI: I understand the sarcasm. You don't 

23 have to worry. 

24 

25 

THE COURT: It doesn't show up on the record. 

So unless you want me to continue the laborious 
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1 process of reviewing the additional 75 percent of the 

2 documents, understanding that for everything post report I'm 

3 going to say "pending further briefing," and for things that 

4 are pre report I'm probably going to say "overruled and 

5 produce," I'll do it, but I'll never get done. 

6 MR. PISANELLI: I'm not interested in delay, I'm not 

7 interested in you doing unnecessary work, but I am interested 

8 in making sure that I haven't waived a right on a specific 

9 document by doing this. And that's what's got me on my heels 

10 right now. 

11 THE COURT: But your privilege log doesn't glve me 

12 any information at all on a particular document, Mr. 

13 Pisanelli. It deals me date -- it tells me Bates number, 

14 begin and end, tells me date, tells me to, from, other people, 

15 and what you're asserting. 

16 about the subject matter. 

It tells me absolutely nothing 

17 MR. PISANELLI: Well, let me ask you this. If you 

18 lssue an order that sets forth these rulings, making the lssue 

19 now rlpe for a writ 

20 THE COURT: I've been telling you these rules for a 

21 while. 

22 MR. PISANELLI: Let me finish my thought and see if 

23 it makes sense to you so as to avoid the remaining 75 percent. 

24 So you lssue an order, we file a writ, we win, lose, or draw, 

25 and the Supreme Court comes back and the review continues now 
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1 with the guidance either that your original ruling was right, 

2 modification --

3 THE COURT: Or wrong. 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

MR. PISANELLI: or wrong, right. Those are the 

options we have available to us. Once the review lS either 

completed, or maybe you'll have to start over --

THE COURT: Yes. 

MR. PISANELLI: lS it the Court's position 

THE COURT: That's my fear, is that I'm going to 

10 have to start over. 

11 MR. PISANELLI: Yeah. Is it the Court's position 

12 that once the rule of law lS resolved after the writ we will 

13 still have an opportunity to object and preserve our rights on 

14 a document-by-document basis once the review is done? 

15 THE COURT: You've already got work product all over 

16 this privilege log, so I don't think anybody omitted it. 

17 Remember how I gave you a chance to go back and revise the 

18 privilege log? Work product's still all over it. So I don't 

19 think that you've abandoned work product even though I have 

20 previously overruled that objection. And that's okay, because 

21 it's preserved for purposes of your appellate purposes. So I 

22 don't think there is a necessity to go back and redo the log 

23 agaln. But I can't -- because of the way the log lS set up, I 

24 can't do categorical analysis of the information; I have to 

25 rely on you, because I don't have a subject matter issue. 
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1 I've got limited information. But that's okay, because you 

2 

3 

gave me the documents to review. I've done my review. 

decision is mostly time frame based. And on some of the 

My 

4 missing time frames I was able to give context based on what 

5 I'd already reviewed to know what the date of the notes I was 

6 looking at related to, some I wasn't. If I wasn't able to 

7 asslgn a date to them, I assumed that it was the later date 

8 and gave it "pending further briefing." 

9 My concern lS that going through the documents is 

10 not golng to assist any of us in this process, because you're 

11 the ones who know what's in the documents, you or someone 

12 who's reviewed them, whoever that lS. 

13 

14 

MR. PISANELLI: Right. 

THE COURT: My decision lS date based. So the 

15 subject matter isn't really important to me at this point, but 

16 if it comes back from the Supreme Court, it may be important. 

17 Because they may say, these type of communications, 

18 communications about hiring someone to assist them in a 

19 country they may not be as familiar with the law in are ln 

20 fact privileged --

21 

22 

MR. PISANELLI: Uh-huh. 

THE COURT: because it's protected somehow. 

23 does not appear to me based upon the content of those 

IT 

24 communications to be so. The reports comlng back from some of 

25 those individuals do not appear to me to be protected. The 
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1 reports related to confidential informants do not appear to be 

2 protected. So what I'm trying to say to you is my decision lS 

3 date based. If it was done as part of the investigation that 

4 formed the oplnlons on the report that was provided to the 

5 board, the compliance committee, and made publicly available 

6 by the Wynn, it's fair game. If it's after the report, I'll 

7 listen to other discussions with you about the context and 

8 scope of that, because it appears to be beyond what was ln the 

9 original retention letter dated October 27th, 2011. 

10 MR. PISANELLI: On the concept of fair game are you 

11 saylng that the rule is broad enough that we should understand 

12 you to say that there's no privilege, period? 

13 

14 

THE COURT: Yes. 

MR. PISANELLI: Not that this lS a fact versus 

15 advice lssue, but there's no privilege. 

16 THE COURT: There was one document that I initially 

17 sustained attorney-client privilege related to the specific 

18 language that would be used in a particular language, and so I 

19 sustained that. But after going through more documents, I am 

20 inclined at this point to go back and change that notation. 

21 MR. PISANELLI: Yeah. So the simple rule we should 

22 confer about is that there is no attorney-client privilege and 

23 there is no work product privilege for the work pre report. 

24 THE COURT: That is what I am telling you I have 

25 been trying to communicate. That's why I said there was no 
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1 work product, because this was not done ln anticipation of 

2 litigation. 

3 MR. PISANELLI: Uh-huh. 

4 THE COURT: The information that appears to be the 

5 content of communications between in-house counsel or meetings 

6 at which in-house counsel and clients were present do not 

7 appear to be attorney-client protected, because it's factual 

8 in nature or deals with corollary matters. 

9 MR. PISANELLI: But what if hypothetically you have 

10 something that's purely advice between the Freeh Group and Kim 

11 Sinatra, by example. And I don't know that this exists or 

12 not, but just so I understand your rule. 

13 THE COURT: It would be really hard for us to pick 

14 it from the log. 

15 MR. PISANELLI: 

16 understanding your rule. 

I understand that. But just so I'm 

So you have a purely legal 

17 communication, legal advice, Judge Freeh advising Kim, do 

18 this, don't do that, but it's pre Freeh report. I'm a little 

19 confused only on this point. When you said fair game I 

20 thought -- I understood you to be suggesting that there lS no 

21 attorney-client privilege in that relationship so it doesn't 

22 matter if it was fact or not. 

23 

24 saylng. 

25 

THE COURT: Well, that's true. That's what I'm 

MR. PISANELLI: Okay. 
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1 THE COURT: But I was inclined to glve you the 

2 benefit of the doubt if there was something that was purely 

3 oplnlon that was not related directly to the investigation. 

4 But even the one that I had thought was not directly related 

5 to the investigation when I first did the first part of the 

6 review, after doing the continuing review I realized that was 

7 how they were operating the investigation. 

8 MR. PISANELLI: Yeah. There's no question we 

9 prepared that review without a lot of subject matter 

10 description for you with the expectation that it was golng to 

11 be a document revlew, not a log review. 

12 

13 

14 

THE COURT: It was a document revlew. 

MR. PISANELLI: So 

THE COURT: That's why I'm trying to tell you that I 

15 can't give you a category. 

16 

17 

MR. PISANELLI: I understand. 

THE COURT: In some cases I will do a category when 

18 there's a category designation. But I can't do that here 

19 because of the way it's presented. 

20 MR. PISANELLI: I understand. May I have a five-

21 minute recess to confer with my team? 

22 

23 

24 

THE COURT: As much as you want. 

MR. PISANELLI: All right. Thanks. 

THE COURT: Because I know how excited Mr. Urga lS 

25 about his motion. 
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1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

yelled 

screwed 

case? 

MR. 

at. 

THE 

up? 

MR. 

URGA: 

COURT: 

Have you 

URGA: 

Your Honor, I just don't want to get 

I'm not yelling at you. Have you 

been the dysfunctional person in this 

Absolutely not, Your Honor. 

(Court recessed at 10:24 a.m., until 10:27 a.m.) 

THE COURT: All right. Mr. Pisanelli, we were 

9 visiting, talking about baseball and how lawyers just don't 

10 get along anymore. 

11 

12 

13 

MR. PEEK: Basketball. 

THE COURT: Basketball. Right. Basketball. Sorry. 

MR. PISANELLI: And how judges mix up their sports? 

14 Was that in there? 

15 THE COURT: Yeah, that, too. Judges who've had a 

16 long mornlng. 

17 

18 

19 

MR. PISANELLI: Let me 

THE COURT: You notice I didn't yell at you guys. 

MR. PISANELLI: I did notice that. It was a nice 

20 way to start the mornlng. So I was happy that happened. 

21 So let me see if I can get our position correct. I 

22 have given full license for my team members to interrupt me if 

23 I get it wrong. 

24 So I don't want to ask the Court to do unnecessary 

25 work. From all of litigants' perspective it doesn't help 
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1 anybody. I am fearful that you may have already -- you may 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

already in the future be required to duplicate at least the 

first 25 percent. So what we would like to do lS take the 

ruling primarily-- and I'll summarize it as that there's no 

attorney-client relationship, therefore there can be no 

attorney-client privilege. 

THE COURT: I didn't say there was no attorney-

client relationship, Mr. Pisanelli. There was an attorney­

client relationship. But there was a waiver of the attorney­

client privilege by the use of the report for the purpose it 

was used for and the public disclosure of that report. 

MR. PISANELLI: Of the report, yeah. 

THE COURT: It's not that there wasn't an attorney-

14 client privilege -- or attorney-client relationship, because 

15 clearly there was. 

16 MR. PISANELLI: Different ways to get to the same 

17 result for purposes of your document review, however. I 

18 understand your point. So the attorney-client relationship 

19 was waived ln its totality and there was no anticipation of 

20 litigation lS the standard you're going to use for this 

21 revlew. We will take both of those rulings up on a writ with 

22 a reservation of rights on all of the documents before they're 

23 produced, filtered through -- to be filtered through the 

24 ruling as the Supreme Court deems appropriate, either the 

25 ruling as you've articulated it, a modified one, or a 
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1 rejection of it in whole. So that would not requlre you to do 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

any further review. I would even say that, you know, what you 

have reviewed so far will remain interlocutory with no action 

required of anyone, is our request. 

THE COURT: Well, we've got to do a written order. 

MR. PISANELLI: Right. 

MR. PEEK: And then a stay. 

MR. PISANELLI: And a stay. And we will take that 

9 written order up on a writ really just for the standard 

10 concerning the relationship and not a document analysis. 

11 THE COURT: Mr. Pisanelli, it doesn't bother me. 

12 It's okay if you go to Carson City. 

13 MR. PISANELLI: I'm saylng this for my own benefit 

14 to make sure you and I are understanding one another. That's 

15 the point, that we're going to take a writ on the standard and 

16 not on the actual documents, and all rights are reserved on 

17 the documents themselves. 

18 THE COURT: And that I am making the ruling after 

19 doing an in-camera review of about 25 percent of the 

20 documents, based on where my cursor is on the list. 

21 

22 

MR. PISANELLI: Right. 

THE COURT: And I believe I have a valid basis for 

23 my understanding of the type of documents for which you're 

24 seeking protection. And I am showing three categories of --

25 that you need to include. For those that are pre report I 
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1 made a determination earlier in this case that they were not 

2 represented in anticipation of litigation, that there was a 

3 different purpose for which it was being prepared. Therefore, 

4 attorney work product didn't apply to it. I made a 

5 determination that because of the use that was put to the 

6 report with the compliance committee, the board, and then the 

7 public disclosure of that report that there was a waiver of 

8 the ability to utilize the attorney-client privilege to 

9 protect it. Based upon my review of the particular 

10 communications that are included in the privilege log, many of 

11 them are not seeking legal advice that would be outside of the 

12 investigation. And so they're related to the investigation, 

13 which I have determined there's an at-issue waiver given the 

14 conduct that's occurred. 

15 For anything-- and I think I've picked the day of 

16 February 22nd, which was a few days after board meeting, to 

17 be the completion, because they were still working on the 

18 appendix for a couple of days, it appeared, after the meeting. 

19 So I set a date that was slightly after the day that the 

20 report was submitted and discussed. I think there are other 

21 lssues that relate to that, and I have not made a 

22 determination, because I don't know the scope of any 

23 additional work that was being done or the purpose of that 

24 work, so I am not including that in my determinations that you 

25 can't rely on attorney work product or waiver -- or that a 
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1 walver has occurred. I am only basing my ruling up through 

2 the time the report and the appendix were being prepared and 

3 disclosed and disseminated. 

4 Any questions, any clarifications needed? 

5 MR. PEEK: Not on that subject matter. But I do --

6 if the Court's done and Mr. Pisanelli's done, I want to 

7 inquire about the pending briefing issue. 

8 THE COURT: You mean where I said I need further 

9 briefing? 

10 

11 

MR. PEEK: Yes. 

THE COURT: I don't know -- are you guys golng to do 

12 before you go up on the writ, or are we golng to do it 

13 separate? 

14 

15 lssues. 

16 

17 

MR. PEEK: I think that those are entirely separate 

THE COURT: I do, too. 

MR. PEEK: And because of the urgency in getting 

18 the documents and getting a decision from the Supreme Court 

19 and I'll take nods of head, I guess, when I go into the 

20 Supreme Court 

21 THE COURT: Pretty interesting, huh? I'm sure 

22 they're golng to agree with me, because they were all nodding 

23 their head when I talked. Wow. 

24 MR. PEEK: That was agaln a sarcastic remark about 

25 what happened earlier today with another lawyer. 
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1 But I -- because of the lack of a subject matter 

2 description on the documents, when the Court says pending 

3 further briefing it's going to be a real challenge for me, 

4 because I don't have the insight that the Court has as to 

5 those documents 

6 

7 

THE COURT: Absolutely. 

MR. PEEK: -- to be able to make that decision or 

8 make that factual and legal analysis of those documents that 

9 you've categorized as post February 22nd or 18th --

10 

11 

12 a little 

13 lSSUe. 

14 it's the 

15 provides 

THE COURT: Whatever date it was I picked, yeah. 

MR. PEEK: -- whatever date you're picking. So I'm 

bit at a disadvantage in being able to brief that 

I will certainly make that effort to brief it. But 

lack of that description in the subject matter that 

a challenge to me in doing the briefing that the 

16 Court has requested me to make. 

17 

18 

19 

THE COURT: Well, I haven't asked you to do it yet. 

MR. PEEK: Okay. It may be that --

THE COURT: I've noted the parties need to do it, 

20 and it's my opinion that the Wynn parties have to go first. 

21 And the reason the Wynn parties have to go first is it appears 

22 there may be a different scope than what was in the retention 

23 letter that I reviewed related to October -- dated October 

24 27th, 2011, that may relate to those efforts. Whether it was 

25 oral or written I don't know, but there may be something 
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1 different that was golng to happen afterwards. And so for 

2 that purpose it would appear that they need to glve us some 

3 additional factual information. Because I will tell you, 

4 frankly, until I hit those documents I was unaware that there 

5 were continuing works, and I went back and read the briefs and 

6 I was not aware that there was a continuing work. So the 

7 ruling I had previously made on work product related to Freeh 

8 is clearly erroneous at this point at least, because I didn't 

9 have adequate information. I may make the same ruing at a 

10 later date, but I was not aware that work continued after the 

11 report was provided to the compliance committee, the board, 

12 and the public [inaudible]. 

13 MR. PEEK: And I agree that we did not -- the Wynn 

14 parties did not address that issue ln the briefing and the 

15 arguments that we had last October on that decision. But, you 

16 know, that's now, as we say, water over the damn or under the 

17 bridge. But-- and I understand they have the burden to prove 

18 to the Court that there is a privilege available to them. So 

19 they would have to go first. My concern is, one, can we get 

20 that briefing done ln an orderly manner and quickly; and, two 

21 at least a challenge for me and asking to get some guidance of 

22 the Court on overcome that is when we see this briefing we're 

23 going to need more subject matter and more factual analysis 

24 than what we have today. So that's -- I'm more concerned 

25 about getting the briefing done and done quickly so that we 
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1 can --

2 

3 

THE COURT: I don't disagree with you. 

MR. PEEK: Yeah. So I would like to have at least a 

4 briefing schedule on that issue by the Court and whether or 

5 not that requlres an amended privilege log to now include more 

6 subject matter description so that as we present this briefing 

7 to the Court we at least have the benefit of a subject matter 

8 description within a privilege log that they're going to -- on 

9 which they claim privilege and on which they have the burden 

10 of showing the privilege. 

11 THE COURT: So, Mr. Pisanelli, you get to go first 

12 on the briefing that I have indicated needs to be done. How 

13 long do you need? It's --

14 MR. PISANELLI: Well, Ms. Spinelli rightly points 

15 out that a practice of our opponents has been to spend months 

16 filing briefs and then put on an OST. We have about 10 we're 

17 responding to on an OST right now. So I would say 30 days. 

18 THE COURT: Okay. So you're going to give me a 

19 brief by mid May. 

20 And then, Mr. Peek, how long do you want after you 

21 get that brief? 

22 MR. PEEK: Without knowing what that brief is golng 

23 to look like, Your Honor, it may take more than the ordinary 

24 15 days. 

25 THE COURT: Really. That's why I'm glvlng you --
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1 MR. PEEK: So I would like at least 20 days, Your 

2 Honor. 

3 THE COURT: So why don't we glve you 30. 

4 Mr. Pisanelli, I anticipate you will have exhibits 

5 that are submitted with your brief that will help clarify. 

6 Because the privilege log itself will not provide assistance 

7 except for the date issue. 

8 MR. PISANELLI: Well, we will. And just so Your 

9 Honor knows, there lS an extensive body of evidence in this 

10 case. I would say virtually every deposition in this case has 

11 explored the post-report, post-redemption investigation into 

12 Mr. Okada's behavior. Remember how many times I talk about 

13 that $40 million ln bribes? That's post redemption. This has 

14 been the subject of this litigation. To suggest that they 

15 don't know about it is not exactly true. 

16 THE COURT: Mr. Pisanelli, I know that now. I 

17 didn't know that before. 

MR. PISANELLI: I'm not talking about you. 18 

19 THE COURT: And I'm going to forget it, because I 

20 reviewed it as in-camera documents that may be privileged. So 

21 I need to forget it now. 

22 MR. PISANELLI: I understand. You'll even find, 

23 Your Honor, that this topic was briefed in the parties' 

24 attempt to continue to bring Mr. Stern back over and over. So 

25 I'm not saying that you have enough, I'm saying--
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1 THE COURT: I didn't know when you guys briefed me 

2 on Mr. Stern --

3 MR. PISANELLI: This is no surprlse to these guys. 

THE COURT: that Judge Freeh and his staff were 4 

5 involved. I knew that Mr. Stern was involved in those 

6 discussions, but I was unaware that the Freeh people were 

7 involved in those issues. 

8 MR. PEEK: Your Honor, I --

9 

10 you. 

MR. PISANELLI: Your Honor, I'm not talking about 

I'm talking about his suggestion that they're going to 

11 be surprised by the evidence. They're not surprised by a 

12 thing. They're involved in this case, and they know 

13 everything that's gone on. That's all I was saying. Not you, 

14 the defendants. 

15 THE COURT: Well, remember I have other cases, to. 

16 It's not just this case. 

17 MR. PEEK: You do, Your Honor. And I'm not golng to 

18 stand here and debate with Mr. Pisanelli who makes motions on 

19 orders shortening time and who has evidence or doesn't have 

20 evidence and whether or not there is or is not, as he claims, 

21 a $40 million bribe. That's for the jury to decide, not for 

22 this Court, other than to maybe trash my client along the way. 

23 But we'll deal with that. 

24 

25 

THE COURT: I am not trashing anybody's client. 

MR. PEEK: Without subject matter descriptions it's 
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1 golng to be a challenge. We'll wait and see. As the Court 

2 knows, there is a body of caselaw that says if the privilege 

3 log itself is inadequate, that itself is a walver. So 

4 THE COURT: Yes, I know. I've been asked by Mr. 

5 Pisanelli's folks to apply that standard ln a different case, 

6 and I declined to do so. 

7 So, Mr. Pisanelli, you're mid May. 

8 Mr. Peek, that means you're mid June. 

9 Mr. Pisanelli, you want to file a reply brief after 

10 that? 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 me. 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

MR. PISANELLI: Yes, Your Honor. 

THE COURT: And how long do you want after that? 

MR. PISANELLI: Ten days. 

MR. PEEK: Can we have dates certain, Your Honor? 

THE COURT: Yes. Dulce will give them to you, not 

MR. PEEK: Thank you. 

THE COURT: And that puts a hearing late June. 

THE CLERK: Mr. Pisanelli's brief May 12th. 

Mr. Peek's June 9th. 

THE COURT: She's doing four weeks. 

THE CLERK: Yes. The reply will be June 20 -- I'm 

23 sorry, June 13th. 

24 

25 

And hearing on [inaudible]. 

MR. PEEK: So May 12th is the first date. 
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1 

2 June 20. 

3 

4 

5 

6 

THE CLERK: Oh. Sorry. Ten days. That will be 

The hearing will be on --

THE COURT: How about June 30th? 

THE CLERK: You won't be here. 

THE COURT: I'm not here? Is that the State Bar 

7 Convention? 

8 MS. SPINELLI: It's the Jacobs trial. 

9 MR. PEEK: It doesn't matter. It doesn't matter to 

10 me, Your Honor. 

11 

12 

13 

14 

THE COURT: June 28th? 

MR. PEEK: So when was the reply again? 

MR. PISANELLI: 20th. 

MR. PEEK: 20. So let me just go back over these. 

15 May 12th is opening brief, June 9th is opposition brief, 

16 June 20 is reply brief, and the hearing date is June 28th. 

17 

18 

19 

THE COURT: That's what I've got. 

MR. PEEK: Thank you. 

THE COURT: Okay. Now, lS there anything else 

20 before I go to Mr. Urga's motion? 

21 Be very polite and well behaved, Mr. Urga. 

22 MR. PISANELLI: So and the ruling that you're 

23 golng to issue, there lS a stay included as part of it --

24 

25 

THE COURT: Yes. 

MR. PISANELLI: for purposes of the writ? 
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1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

stay? 

THE COURT: I granted that request. 

MR. PISANELLI: Thank you. Timing? How long lS the 

THE COURT: Till the Supreme Court decides. 

MR. PISANELLI: Very good. Thank you. 

THE COURT: Or decides they're not going to decide. 

MR. PISANELLI: Okay. 

MR. PEEK: Your Honor, I know in the Brownstein 

9 Hyatt issue that was submitted to writ the Court granted a 

10 60-day stay. 

11 

12 

THE COURT: I did. 

MR. PEEK: Now what I hear the Court saylng lS that 

13 they're golng to grant open-ended stay until the Supreme Court 

14 decides. 

15 THE COURT: My experlence lately is the Supreme 

16 Court takes every writ on one of my cases that goes up to 

17 them. 

18 MR. PEEK: No, I -- I appreciate that, Your Honor. 

19 But I would like to have a date certain, as opposed to 

20 THE COURT: I'll glve you -- if you'd rather have a 

21 date certain, that's okay. But I'm golng to extend it upon 

22 application. 

23 

24 may --

25 

MR. PEEK: I understand that the Court may extend --

MR. PISANELLI: So doesn't that just simply requlre 
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1 more litigation, Your Honor? 

2 MR. PEEK: Can I finish my -- before being 

3 interrupted. 

4 THE COURT: Okay. 

5 MR. PEEK: I would just appreciate, Your Honor, a 

6 60-day stay as we did in the Brownstein Hyatt. If they need 

7 more time, they can come back and seek more time and we can 

8 discuss it at that time. 

9 MR. PISANELLI: In other words, we can waste 

10 litigation time and resources when the Court has already said 

11 it's going to be extended. Why don't we do exactly what the 

12 Court wants us to do, get the ruling from the Supreme Court 

13 and move forward and minimize this wasteless and useless 

14 litigation. 

15 THE COURT: Okay. So I'm golng to glve you a stay. 

16 It's going to be renewed whenever you request, and I'm going 

17 to put it on my chambers calendar for you to tell me if you've 

18 heard anything from the Supreme Court. And I'm going to 

19 initially make the stay 90 days, and I'll set it on the 

20 chambers calendar right before the conclusion of the 90 days. 

21 

22 

23 

24 Honor. 

25 

MR. PEEK: Thank you, Your Honor. 

THE COURT: Now, who wants to draft the order? 

MS. SPINELLI: We can take the first stab, Your 

MR. PISANELLI: We'll present it --
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1 THE COURT: And here's the problem. If I let you 

2 guys draft the order, it's golng to be another two weeks 

3 before I see the order. 

4 MS. SPINELLI: Because we fight about it? 

5 THE COURT: Yes. 

6 MR. PEEK: Your Honor, Slnce we are -- I think we're 

7 the prevailing party on that one, that we should be the one to 

8 draft the order. 

9 

10 

THE COURT: Will you get me an order quickly? 

MR. PEEK: I will get you an order quickly. A lot 

11 of it depends on the transcript, if we can get it. 

12 THE COURT: I'm going to put it on next Friday's 

13 chambers calendar for Laura to make sure you gave us the 

14 order. 

15 

16 

17 

18 Mr. Urga? 

19 

THE CLERK: April 22, chambers. 

MR. PEEK: Thank you. 

THE COURT: Okay. Anything else before I go now to 

MR. URGA: Your Honor, speaking of orders, we have 

20 an order that is kind of in flux. We had the hearing a week 

21 or so ago about Mr. Stern and the deposition for the four 

22 hours. In our motion we had picked a date, and there's some 

23 confusion of whether we just leave that date ln there. And we 

24 can't reach that date because apparently Mr. Stern's on 

25 vacation or something, we can't reach him. 
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THE COURT: I heard there was a rumor that there was 

something Mr. Peek was going to do related to that. I think 

he said in court that he wanted to get more time, too. 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

MR. PEEK: I did. What came up, Your Honor, ln the 

disagreement over the order was whether or not the Court had 

ordered, as requested in the motion, Mr. Stern to appear on 

7 April 22nd. 

8 THE COURT: I did not order a particular date. I 

9 ordered a particular number of hours. 

10 MR. PISANELLI: Was our position. 

11 THE COURT: My anticipation was that Mr. Stern would 

12 not have to come back for Mr. Peek's additional request if 

13 it's granted and for Mr. Urga's out-of-state counsel's 

14 request. 

15 MR. PEEK: Well, that puts a burden on me to make 

16 sure I get that motion on file quickly. 

17 MR. URGA: Yeah. For the record, we put the date ln 

18 because that was in our motion. You granted the motion --

19 MR. PISANELLI: Or granted it in part. And that was 

20 not the part you granted. 

21 THE COURT: Okay. So I didn't --

22 MR. URGA: So I've got an order, but you either 

23 cross it out, or we'll have to bring you another one. 

24 

25 

THE COURT: I'll cross it out. 

MR. PISANELLI: So, Your Honor, while you're doing 
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1 that, Ms. Spinelli reminds me we have a motion tomorrow that 

2 seems to be appropriately folded into what we've accomplished 

3 today, and that has to do with Freeh notes. It's all part of 

4 the Freeh we'll call it file. Can we accelerate that and 

5 either -- I don't know what the appropriate --

6 THE COURT: I haven't read that, except the order 

7 shortening time and affidavit part, yet. 

8 MR. PISANELLI: The notes are inside the documents 

9 you've got. That's a subset of what we're arguing. 

10 THE COURT: I read notes. I've read notes that are 

11 pre report and post report. 

12 

13 

MR. PISANELLI: I think these are pre. 

MR. PEEK: These are pre, Your Honor, as I 

14 understand it. 

15 MS. SPINELLI: It's divided into pre report and 

16 then --

17 MR. PEEK: So that motion is mooted by 

18 MR. PISANELLI: It seems [inaudible]. 

19 MR. PEEK: I think Mr. Pisanelli is correct. That 

20 motion with respect to the interview notes, Your Honor, which 

21 is set for tomorrow mornlng 

22 THE COURT: I set it there on purpose because of 

23 this discussion I'm trying to have with you. 

24 MR. PEEK: I now appreciate that even more. Because 

25 we tried to move it a little bit more to get it off of the 
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1 calendar. But it would appear to me that it is well captured 

2 by what the Court has ruled today. So actually there are two 

3 motions, I think, one tomorrow that are addressed in that one 

4 is to compel immediate production of the Freeh documents, and 

5 the second one is to compel the interview notes of Mr. Scotti 

6 that he described ln his deposition. So it seems that those 

7 two categories are captured by the Court's order today and 

8 need not be addressed by the Court tomorrow. 

9 THE COURT: Okay. Then you can advance it today if 

10 everybody's agreed. And for those notes that are pre report 

11 they are subject to my order of production related to the fact 

12 that there is no attorney work product available because it 

13 was not prepared in anticipation of litigation and there was 

14 an at-issue waiver of the attorney-client privilege given the 

15 report and the way that it was used and then released. 

16 For those that are post-report interviews, those I 

17 am not ordering produced at this time pending further briefing 

18 that we've set the schedule, and I have an argument currently 

19 scheduled on those issues related to June 28th -- June 28th at 

20 8:30. 

21 MR. PEEK: Your Honor, out of an abundance of 

22 caution I may put some language within the order that would 

23 address the two motions, since they're both being advanced to 

24 today. 

25 THE COURT: I think you should. 
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1 MR. PEEK: Yeah. I will put them in the order, 

2 Slnce they're being advanced, and address them with hopefully 

3 the correct language. 

4 THE COURT: Now, please do not attach the draft of 

5 the rulings I have made on the attorney-client privilege log, 

6 because I made a determination on categories based on my 

7 revlew, rather than on a document-by-document ruling. 

8 MR. PEEK: And 

9 

10 

THE COURT: You understand what I'm saying? 

MR. PEEK: I do, Your Honor. And I'll try to 

11 capture it as best I can without referring to that, because 

12 but to say that you have made a revlew --

13 THE COURT: I have. And they're marked as Court's 

14 exhibits, and they're part of a -- but they're an ln-process 

15 review, because there are a couple of if you were golng to use 

16 it for purposes of the Supreme Court discussion I would go 

17 back and revise those entries that were sent to you earlier. 

18 (Pause in the proceedings) 

19 MR. PEEK: I was asking Mr. Pisanelli if he needed 

20 -- he thought he needed those Exhibits 2 and Exhibit 2A for 

21 the writ. And he --

22 THE COURT: Well, and there's now a 2B, but it's 

23 sealed, I think. Isn't it? Yeah. Because it's still --

24 

25 

MR. PEEK: And wasn't -- so we -­

THE COURT: I didn't send you 2B. 
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1 

2 

3 enough. 

4 

MR. PEEK: Yeah. Okay. 

THE COURT: 2B was when I said, I'm done, I've seen 

MR. PEEK: So I just asked Mr. Pisanelli whether he 

5 thinks he needs that as an attachment or as a reference of 

6 

7 

8 

having sent out the 2A, the 2, the 2A, and reviewed the 2B. 

I'll try to capture it, Your Honor, as best I can. 

THE COURT: And I apologize to counsel that we had 

9 mislaid that for as long as we did. We've come up with a new 

10 process. If we need to follow up with your office on 

11 something we think are missing, we're going to do it in 

12 writing by email. And then if we don't get a response, we'll 

13 know or we'll follow up when we get the response. 

14 MR. PEEK: Your Honor, I don't put any fault 

15 anywhere. That's why I brought it to the Court's attention. 

16 THE COURT: I understand. And I really appreciate 

17 it. But it gave me a 

18 MR. PEEK: I was not trying to fault anybody at all. 

19 I just wanted to get it done. 

20 THE COURT: I got to glve Laura a hard time, because 

21 Slnce she's been here she's not made a mistake like that. And 

22 so it was her first one, and it was a good one for us to work 

23 with. 

24 

25 

THE LAW CLERK: Turned red. 

MR. PEEK: I'm sure she -- you know, Your Honor, we 
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1 have worked well with Laura, and I think both offices can say 

2 we've all worked well with Laura and we appreciate all that 

3 she's done. 

4 THE COURT: I'm just glvlng Laura a hard time 

5 because she's done such a great job as a law clerk. 

6 Anything else? 

7 Can we go to your motion? And then I can go to the 

8 Becker family fight. 

9 MR. MALLEY: So we're still comlng back tomorrow; lS 

10 that right? 

11 

12 tomorrow. 

13 

14 

15 coding. 

16 

17 up we're 

18 assisted 

19 

20 

THE COURT: Yes. We have predictive coding 

MR. MALLEY: Okay. That's what I thought. 

THE COURT: A very exciting issue on predictive 

MR. PISANELLI: Your Honor, while Mr. Urga's setting 

golng to bring one of our co-counsel that has 

us as a consultant 

(Pause ln the proceedings) 

MR. PISANELLI: You meet him ln an earlier argument 

21 when we asked for permission up front. My only question to 

22 you is what your practice is ln your courtroom for an out-of-

23 state counsel who's not admitted. Would you be --would you 

24 allow him to speak if we asked? 

25 THE COURT: You will note when you come tomorrow 
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1 that part of what I'm golng to tell you is we need to have a 

2 meet and confer with the technical people in my presence, 

3 because I'm done. And you guys are not communicating, but the 

4 two experts sitting down ln a meeting will be able to 

5 communicate, and it lS likely we will be able to resolve some 

6 of the lssues. 

7 MR. PISANELLI: All right. Good. Thank you. 

8 THE COURT: So if you bring your person, that would 

9 be lovely, and we'll have a discussion. And if we don't have 

10 both people here, then I'm going to order a meet and confer. 

11 

12 

13 Honor. 

14 

15 

MR. PISANELLI: Okay. 

MR. URGA: I hope that didn't deal with me, Your 

THE COURT: It didn't. 

MS. SPINELLI: You don't even know what it lS. 

16 You're fine. 

17 MR. URGA: Debbie says I don't need to know, so I'm 

18 okay. 

19 Your Honor, one other thing I noticed and I meant to 

20 bring it up. You've got something in chambers for Mr. Kecker 

21 to be admitted pro hac. I think it's on for tomorrow. We 

22 have filed a motion to disqualify, and I'm trying to figure 

23 out what's going to happen. 

24 

25 

THE COURT: Can I set it for argument? 

MR. WILLIAMS: I thought it was going to be taken up 
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1 at the same time as the motion to disqualify on May 3rd, Your 

2 Honor. 

3 

4 for? 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

THE COURT: When lS the motion to disqualify set 

MR. WILLIAMS: May 3rd. 

THE COURT: So I'll move that motion to May 3rd. 

THE CLERK: Yes, Your Honor. 

MR. WILLIAMS: Thank you. 

THE COURT: Good catch, Mr. Williams. 

We're on the Dr. Irani highly confidential 

11 designations, about four. I read some of them last night when 

12 I was reading the transcript in the other briefing. 

13 Anything else you want to tell me? 

14 MR. URGA: Your Honor, I'm going to guess that I 

15 don't need to argue this. And if you have questions, I'm 

16 willing to do -- I'll answer the questions. But if the Court 

17 looks at-- you know, we attached a copy of a protective 

18 order, and I'll just briefly say that what was testified to 

19 doesn't come under either highly confidential or confidential. 

20 If you don't know it, you don't know it, and it has nothing to 

21 do that would somehow be competitive or a business damage or 

22 some sort of substantial risk of competitive injury. Again, 

23 uslng the theory that if somehow the board was thinking about 

24 golng to a new jurisdiction for a gaming application, clearly 

25 that would be something that would be covered, and I wouldn't 
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1 be here. But I don't think these are the type of things that 

2 really should be marked confidential or highly confidential. 

3 And it kind of goes on a little bit more for some of 

4 the other board members that are golng to be deposed. Like 

5 Mr. Irani is going this afternoon, and others are still going 

6 to be going forward. 

7 So if the Court has any questions, I'm more than 

8 happy to try to respond. 

9 

10 

11 

THE COURT: I don't have any more questions. 

MR. URGA: Thank you. 

MR. PISANELLI: I do have a couple of things I'd 

12 like to say, Your Honor. 

13 THE COURT: If you want to refer me to a particular 

14 page as you go there, Mr. Pisanelli, I'd love to have a 

15 discussion with you about them. 

16 

17 

MR. PISANELLI: Okay. 

THE COURT: You don't have to say the content of 

18 them, because they've been designated highly confidential. 

19 But I have most of the transcript here. Not all of it, most 

20 of it. 

21 MR. PISANELLI: So before we get there, a point 

22 about the timeliness of this motion. You were very clear to 

23 us the last time we were before you about the parties avoiding 

24 duplicative litigation. And apparently that mandate fell on 

25 deaf ears for the Quinn Emanuel firm as they march forward 
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1 here treating this -- their claims as separate from the rest 

2 of the litigation. They're litigating a case within a case. 

3 The Okada parties have rightly exercised their right not to be 

4 rushed. They have time under the protective order, and they 

5 said, we have not reviewed it yet and we don't have a position 

6 yet. And I don't want to misstate Mr. Peek's position. 

7 says I'm wrong, he'll surely correct me. 

8 But the point is --

If he 

9 THE COURT: But it was Mr. Cassity who said that, 

10 not Mr. Peek. 

11 MR. PISANELLI: Well, either one of them. 

12 But the point is this, Your Honor. We asked them to 

13 all get together, let's have one meet and confer, and let's 

14 have one motion. But the Quinn Emanuel firm on behalf of Ms. 

15 Wynn says, we don't care about the rest of your case, we're 

16 litigating our own case and moving forward at our own pace. 

17 You've seen that through the way that they have litigated 

18 serial motions and doing all of them on an OST. 

19 So my point lS first and foremost this shouldn't 

20 even be before you yet. The Okada parties have yet to 

21 exerclse their rights. And once that has happened, then we 

22 can have that debate. 

23 Secondly, this getting to the merits, there lS 

24 not a serious argument that these lawyers cannot conduct a 

25 fair deposition of Mr. Irani unless they are entitled to 
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1 expose his answers ln press releases and inflammatory -- now 

2 that's the new step in the campaign, is inflammatory letters 

3 to the board of directors mud slinging at Dr. Irani. Let's be 

4 very clear about this, Your Honor. Ms. Wynn and her new law 

5 firm are checking off every one of the directors. Their 

6 attack goes against them. They've already started on Governor 

7 Miller. You've seen what they're doing with Mr. Wynn. Now 

8 it's Dr. Irani's turn with these inflammatory and completely 

9 irrelevant remarks about his career at Occidental and trying 

10 to mud sling. They have forwarded a long, inflammatory, 

11 clearly lawyer-written letter disparaging him in this letter 

12 to be obviously published and be the latest subject of their 

13 new press release. And now here we are actually crying 

14 prejudice, Ms. Wynn and her new lawyers, that they can't 

15 perform their job -- I'm assuming they meant their lawyer job 

16 and not their PR job -- if they can't publicly expose what is 

17 ln our minutes and records. 

18 If there's anything that tells us, Your Honor, that 

19 this is not a good-faith position, forget that they have cited 

20 to you the wrong standard, forget that they haven't really 

21 articulated any prejudice, but let's just look at how Ms. Wynn 

22 and her lawyers, including Mr. Urga, including Munger Tolles & 

23 Olson, behaved before Quinn Emanuel found its way into this 

24 litigation. Ms. Wynn herself designated the minutes and her 

25 participation in the board and committees to the extent she 
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1 was on any as highly confidential. It is only when the new 

2 law firm came into this lawsuit and decided that the way to 

3 relitigate a divorce settlement inside this commercial 

4 litigation was to wreak havoc, that is only when their 

5 position now changed and the argument is, you know, that they 

6 just can't understand why we would to what they did, what we 

7 all have done and treated these documents and this information 

8 as highly confidential. 

9 This is what every company does, Your Honor. Behind 

10 the curtain, as we call it, you know, inside the board room, 

11 inside the committee rooms, is not public information. What 

12 you talk about as a director, what you talk about as a 

13 committee member I would say by definition is highly important 

14 to the company and it doesn't go out. It doesn't go out in 

15 the context of what you said, it doesn't go out in the context 

16 so that you could draw inferences from what is not said. Ms. 

17 Wynn understood that before she abandoned her fiduciary 

18 obligations and started the public campaign, and nothing's 

19 changed. 

20 THE COURT: So I reviewed part of the deposition 

21 last night. Not all of it, a part of it. And tell me why for 

22 these particular responses of Dr. Irani confidential --

23 assuming the Okada parties had already had their time, why 

24 confidential would not be the appropriate designation, as 

25 opposed to highly confidential. That would still have the 
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1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

protection related to the mlsuse of the depositions that you 

are indicating may or may not be occurring by this other law 

firm, but they don't appear to be highly confidential, at 

least those entries that I looked at. 

MR. PISANELLI: So when you 

THE COURT: Because they don't look like strategy, 

7 planning, the kinds of things that I need to make sure are 

8 clearly protected for that sensitive commercial interest on an 

9 ongolng basis. 

10 MR. PISANELLI: Sure. Sure. You know and you would 

11 expect of all of us to take the cautious, careful approach. 

12 And that's what we did, because we have two parties that are 

13 no longer inside that board room that have exhibited an intent 

14 to mlsuse information. Mr. Okada has been sanctioned, if 

15 memory serves correctly, for violating the confidentiality 

16 order. 

17 THE COURT: He paid your attorneys' fees related to 

18 those lssues. 

19 MR. PISANELLI: That's right. And has disclosed 

20 highly confidential information in press releases. And now 

21 Ms. Wynn, who is no longer in that board room, is doing the 

22 same thing. They are following a blueprint strategy in this 

23 case -- at least Ms. Wynn is now following the initial 

24 strategy that the Okada team followed, and that is litigate ln 

25 the press, cause harm, wreak havoc so that you have some 
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1 leverage for negotiation. That's what it appears, anyway. 

2 I'm not inside their camp, but that's what it appears by all 

3 measures. 

4 When parties take those actions and prove themselves 

5 to be willing and desirous of inflicting harm unrelated to the 

6 litigation, taking information highly confidential and 

7 suffering the consequences through the sanction here because 

8 that's far, far less of a press to pay than the perceived 

9 advantage of disclosing them, I think the relns need to be 

10 tightened ln a lot. Ms. Wynn and her new law firm have been 

11 very aggresslve in these press releases, very aggresslve ln 

12 the threatening form complaints, and even into salacious 

13 comments that made it through the filtering process in this 

14 case that they obviously have ulterior motives beyond the 

15 merits of this case. And therefore we have taken the 

16 conservative approach that when we are talking about what our 

17 business leaders do in the board of directors meetings and in 

18 the committee meetings and what they don't do so as to avoid 

19 their press releases about inferences from what's missing or 

20 from what, God forbid, a director can't remember from a year 

21 ago or five years ago, I think that the only safe and fair 

22 thing to do is to leave it in the eyes of the lawyers. When 

23 and if, Your Honor, a lawyer for one of these teams comes up 

24 and says a legitimate prejudice of why their client needs to 

25 see it or why we need to downgrade it, I think the history of 
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1 the abuse should requlre them to come ln and glve prejudice 

2 before we downgrade. 

3 There's no prejudice to the litigation. That's why 

4 we're here, after all. That's the only reason they're ln 

5 possesslon of these things, after all, is that their 

6 litigation of this litigation. We're not asking you to 

7 prejudice anyone in this litigation. We're asking you to take 

8 the highest, most cautious approach to protect us, because we 

9 have parties in this case that have ulterior motives outside 

10 the doors of this courtroom. 

11 

12 

THE COURT: Okay. Mr. Urga. 

MR. URGA: Your Honor --

13 MR. PEEK: Your Honor, after Mr. Urga lS done I'd 

14 like to say something. Because it seems like I became the 

15 subject matter of the argument today. 

MR. URGA: I'm sorry. 16 

17 Your Honor, first of all, if you go to paragraph 18 

18 of the protective order, the burden lS on the person 

19 designating to --

20 THE COURT: Right. But you're a little soon on your 

21 request glven the fact the Okada parties haven't --

22 MR. URGA: Let's talk about that. Let's talk about 

23 that. The first day of the deposition was the Okada 

24 deposition. We're only talking about Volume 2, which related 

25 to Mr. Zeller's questioning of Mr. Irani. So it seems to me 
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1 that there's no reason that we have to wait 60 days, because 

2 we're going to run out of time, if it only dealt with issue 

3 that were dealing with our particular case. There's nothing 

4 that says that that has to happen. Otherwise, we're going to 

5 have the same thing that's golng on. They put ln 

6 82 objections to this deposition, either highly confidential 

7 or confidential. One letter they wiped them all out. If you 

8 look at paragraph 3 of the agreement, the protective agreement 

9 -- order, you are supposed to take care to limit such 

10 designation to specific material that qualifies under the 

11 appropriate standards. 

12 And I'm going to read to you what the standards are. 

13 They don't fall under either confidential or highly 

14 confidential. And that's the trouble we're having. We get 

15 these letters, and they have pages of everything they declare. 

16 THE COURT: I've seen them on this and other 

17 depositions. So trust me, I understand. 

18 MR. URGA: And it's wrong, Your Honor. And so what 

19 we look at is paragraph 4, which talks about confidential 

20 information, information that reflects nonpublic information, 

21 trade secrets, know-how, other financial, proprietary, 

22 commercially sensitive, et cetera, et cetera, information that 

23 disclosure of which the producing party, the company, believes 

24 in good faith might reasonably result ln economlc or 

25 competitive or business injury to the producing party. They 
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1 have not shown that at all, because it doesn't exist. 

2 You go down to highly confidential, paragraph 5. 

3 Same thing. They talk about what it consists of. Then it 

4 says, "the disclosure of which would create a substantial risk 

5 of competitive, business, or personal injury to the producing 

6 party." Again, they have not shown any of that. They're 

7 putting the burden on the wrong party in this case. The fact 

8 that it may be something that's unpleasant or not something 

9 they want to have disclosed doesn't mean that we shouldn't be 

10 able to talk to our client and even talk to third parties 

11 about what's going on so we can properly prepare our case. 

12 And for them to just keep saying everything is confidential or 

13 highly confidential doesn't work. 

14 And then back to your question, I don't think that 

15 there's any requirement that we wait. And if you look at what 

16 was submitted by the Okada parties, I don't think they're 

17 talking about our complaints. They don't have any objection 

18 to ours. They're looking through Volume 1, which lS what was 

19 designated as confidential or highly confidential by the 

20 company. So they can look at that. They want more time, 

21 apparently. We don't have more time. We're running out of 

22 time, and we need to move forward. And I don't think there's 

23 anything in this protective order that says we can't do 

24 exactly what we did, Your Honor. We met, we tried to get it 

25 resolved, they wiped out all but four of these things on one 
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1 letter. So they have 28 highly confidential and 50-some 

2 confidential items that in one letter they said no. Now, 

3 we've had to spend the time looking at all of that stuff. So 

4 they're overdesignating. They're violating Rule 3 -- or 

5 paragraph 3 of the agreement. And I can't see anything in 

6 here that says they may have to have two meet and confers. 

7 Well, they're having meet and confers on all kinds of 

8 different things that all the parties aren't included ln. It 

9 depends on what particular issue is before the parties at that 

10 particular time. 

11 So, Your Honor, I don't think it's appropriate to 

12 say that we have to wait until the Okada parties decide what 

13 they want to do with respect to the deposition that they took. 

14 THE COURT: Mr. Peek, lS there anything you want to 

15 add? I did read your submission. 

16 MR. PEEK: Thank you, Your Honor. And I think Mr. 

17 Urga lS correct that our lssues relate more to Volume 1 than 

18 they do to Volume 2, because Volume 2 was their deposition 

19 time, and they took their deposition time. Dr. Irani is going 

20 forward this afternoon, I understand, for further testimony. 

21 So I don't have anything more to add. 

22 The only reason I wanted to say something, too, lS 

23 that Mr. Pisanelli gets up and argues about Ms. Wynn adopting 

24 this strategy of Okada. And I take great offense to that. I 

25 understand the sanction. I understand that that was a 
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1 

2 

3 

document shown to Mr. Takeuchi during the course of his 

deposition and that was the basis for the sanction. And 

that's all it was. So let's not get into this trashing, as 

4 Mr. Pisanelli is apparently inclined to do, every time he gets 

5 up to trash the Aruze parties. And so that is why -- I don't 

6 agree with what he says. I don't want it to go unsaid as 

7 though I'm accepting what he says as this strategy. Since 

8 I've been the case I don't think there's been any press 

9 related to Mr. Okada. There was the one press when Churchoff 

10 issued is report, similar ln response to the Freeh press that 

11 they put out there in The Wall Street Journal the day that 

12 they filed the complaint. So let's not be living in glass 

13 houses and throwing rocks at other folks. 

14 THE COURT: Okay. 

15 MR. PISANELLI: Your Honor, I have to correct the 

16 record, because it goes to the heart of our position. Mr. 

17 Peek is wrong when he says that this was just about showing 

18 something to their witness. This lS about taking the appendix 

19 and showing it to a third party. 

20 THE COURT: Mr. Pisanelli, I already ruled on that. 

21 I already gave you your attorneys' fees. We're all done. 

22 MR. PISANELLI: But this lS my point. But, Your 

23 Honor, this is my point. 

THE COURT: I know. 24 

25 MR. PISANELLI: Mr. Okada was not part of our board 
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1 at the time of these board minutes that we have sealed highly 

2 confidential. So to downgrade it, even the confidential, 

3 brings him into the board room, where he never had a right to 

4 be. And that's why it shouldn't be downgraded. 

5 THE COURT: Thank you. 

6 The motion lS granted even though it lS premature, 

7 glven the filing by the Aruze parties that do not object. 

8 Those sections on page --hold on, I've got to put on my 

9 readers here. 

10 In Volume 2 19614 through 19721 lS changed to 

11 confidential, not highly confidential. 

12 19812 to 19922 is changed from highly confidential 

13 to confidential. 

14 22436 lS changed from highly confidential to 

15 confidential. 

16 And 2253 through 20 lS changed from highly 

17 confidential to confidential. 

18 It maintains the confidentiality protection and may 

19 not be used for an improper purpose. 

20 

21 

MR. URGA: Your Honor --

THE COURT: Please make sure your out-of-town 

22 lawyers know that. 

23 MR. URGA: Yes, Your Honor. The first page you 

24 mentioned was 19614. I think you said to 19721. I thought it 

25 was -27. 
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1 

2 were --

3 

4 

THE COURT: It may be. Whatever the four sections 

MR. URGA: Okay. 

THE COURT: -- they're changed from highly 

5 confidential to confidential. 

6 Anything else today? 

7 MR. PEEK: The only thing, Your Honor, I wanted the 

8 Court to know and counsel to know that I wrote the dates on 

9 the back of the order that you signed, thinking it was the one 

10 that I had in my file. 

11 

12 

THE COURT: Would you like a Post-It note? 

MR. PEEK: Well, all I was golng to do was just tell 

13 them-- it's just on the back of the page. I was just going 

14 to white it out. 

15 THE COURT: They won't see it when you efile it. 

16 They're golng to scan it. The back of the page won't show. 

17 

18 

MR. PEEK: Okay. 

MR. PISANELLI: Your Honor, do you have on your 

19 docket the pro hac vice motion for the Orrick firm, Melinda 

20 Haag? Is that today? 

21 THE COURT: I don't know. 

22 THE CLERK: Yes. 

23 THE COURT: They say yes. 

24 MR. PISANELLI: I don't believe there's an 

25 opposition. 
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1 THE COURT: Is there any objection to the motion to 

2 associate 

3 These are Ms. Sinatra's attorneys? 

4 

5 

6 

MR. PISANELLI: Yes. 

THE COURT: Any objection? 

MR. URGA: No. 

7 THE COURT: It's granted. 

8 you tomorrow. 

'Bye. I'll see some of 

9 MS. SPINELLI: Your Honor, the last time we were 

10 here you asked us about two motions to seal and if we had a 

11 position. And it was the motion to seal related to the Stern 

12 motion to compel filed by Elaine's counsel and the motion to 

13 seal related to the motion to de-designate Irani. We don't 

14 have an opposition to either one of those. 

15 THE COURT: Okay. They're granted. 'Bye. 

16 THE PROCEEDINGS CONCLUDED AT 11:11 A.M. 

17 * * * * * 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 
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